
 

 

AGENDA  
 

CHARLOTTE COUNTY CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY LICENSING BOARD 
Administration Center, County Commission Meeting Room #119 

18500 Murdock Circle, Port Charlotte, Florida 33948-1094 
 

December 1, 2016 at 6 pm 
 

Charlotte County Board of County Commissioners does not discriminate on the basis of disability. This 
nondiscrimination policy involves every aspect of the County's functions, including access to and participation in 
meetings, programs, and activities. FM Sound Enhancement Units for the Hearing Impaired are available at the Front 
Security Desk, Building A of the Murdock Administration Complex. Anyone needing other reasonable accommodation 
or auxiliary aids and services please contact our office at 941.743.1381, TDD/TTY 941.743.1234, or by email to 
David.Lyles@charlottecountyfl.gov. 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER  

 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
C. ROLL CALL 

 
D. OPENING STATEMENT  

Election of Chairman and Vice Chairman 
 

E. NEXT MEETING DATE 
January 5, 2017 at 6:00 pm 
 

F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
November 3, 2016 
 

G. SWEARING IN OF ALL THOSE GIVING TESTIMONY 
 
H. AGENDA CHANGES – To be announced 

 
I. CONSENT – AFFIDAVITS OF NONCOMPLIANCE FINES   

All matters listed under this item are considered to be routine and action will be accomplished 
by one motion without separate discussion of each item.  If discussion is desired by a member 
of the Board, that item(s) will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.  
Each case has been assessed with an additional $10.00 for the cost of recording the lien. 
 
1. Luis R Rincon – CIL-16-00592 - $1,010.00     Tom Atkinson 
2. Camilo Guerrero – CIL-16-00590 - $1,010.00    Tom Atkinson 
3. Carlos K Perez – CIL-16-00591 - $1,010.00    Tom Atkinson 
4. Jackie R Moose – CIL-16-00596 - $1,010.00    Tom Atkinson 
5. Rafael L Gonzalez – CIL-16-00593 - $1,010.00    Tom Atkinson 
6. Armando R Hernandez – CIL-16-00594 - $1,010.00  Tom Atkinson 
7. Armando M Rodriguez – CIL-16-00595 - $1,010.00   Tom Atkinson 
8. Paul A Carpenter – CIL-16-00597 - $4,010.00    Tom Atkinson 
 

J. CONTESTING CITATION 
NONE 
 
 
 

mailto:David.Lyles@charlottecountyfl.gov


 

CILB Agenda     Page 2    Revised November 23, 2016, 3:28 PM 
  
 

K. REINSTATEMENT 
1. Joseph Michael Casey     Lorraine Lundblad 

Florida Air Works Inc. 
Certified Air Conditioning Contractor 
License No. CAC1815599 
Case No. CIL-16-00422 
 

Joseph Michael Casey has requested reinstatement of his permitting privileges and the right 
to work in Charlotte County. 
 

L. LICENSE REVIEW 
NONE 
 

M. EXAMINATION 
NONE 
 

N. OLD BUSINESS  
 

O. DISCIPLINE CASES 
1. Jay O Berry - DISMISSED     Terri Barnett 

J W Berry Signs Inc. 
Certified Specialty Contractor 
License No. ES12000309 

 Case No. CIL-15-00452 
 
2. Ronald S Burt       John Drown 

Southwest Building Inc. 
Certified General Contractor 
License No. CGC1518903 
Case No. CIL-15-00477 
 

3. John Kenneth Teague     Terri Barnett 
Annointed Air & Refrigeration Inc.   
Certified Air Conditioning Contractor 
License No. CAC1815111 
Case No. CIL-15-00396 
 

4. Thomas Paul Ronde       Terri Barnett 
Thomas Ronde Roofing LLC 
Registered Roofing Contractor 
License No. RC29027060 
Case No. CIL-16-00464 
 

P. CITIZEN INPUT  
 
Q. REPORT FROM THE LICENSING MANAGER  

 
R. REPORT FROM THE BUILDING OFFICIAL 

 
S. REPORT FROM THE ASSISTANT COUNTY ATTORNEY 

 
 



 

CILB Agenda     Page 3    Revised November 23, 2016, 3:28 PM 
  
 

T. BOARD ATTORNEY COMMENTS  
 
U. REPORT FROM CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY LICENSING BOARD MEMBERS 

 
V. ADJOURNMENT  

Any person who decides to appeal a decision of this Board will need a record of the proceedings 
pertaining thereto, and therefore may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings 
is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be 
based. 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OFTHE CHARLOTTE COUNTY 
CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY LICENSING BOARD 

18500 Murdock Circle, Room 119 
Port Charlotte, Florida 33948 

 
November 3, 2016  

 
CALL TO ORDER  
Vice Chairman Erik Howard called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL  
 Members Present: 

Pamela Alexander 
Thomas Burns 
John Damon 
Erik Howard – Vice Chairman 
Kenneth Lowe  
Robert Overcash 
Carleton Strong  

 
Members Excused Absent: 
Charles Hackbarth – Chairman 
Stephen Gardiner 

 
 Staff Present: 
 Erin Mullen-Travis, Certified Code Compliance Officer, Licensing Manager 

Lorraine Lundblad, Certified Code Compliance Officer, Licensing Investigator 
Tom Atkinson, Certified Code Compliance Officer, Licensing Investigator 
Terri Barnett, Certified Code Compliance Officer, Licensing Investigator 
John Drown, Certified Code Compliance Officer, Licensing Investigator 
Ben Bailey, County Building Official 

 Pooja Patel, Assistant County Attorney 
 Sandra Williamson, Administrative Assistant I 
  
OPENING STATEMENT  
The Vice Chairman read the opening statement into the record. 
 
NEXT MEETING DATE 
December 1, 2016 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES    
Pam Alexander moved to approve the minutes of September 1, 2016. The motion was seconded by 
Carleton Strong and was passed unanimously. 
 
SWEARING IN OF ALL THOSE GIVING TESTIMONY 
Sandra Williamson administered oath to those who gave testimony. 
 
AGENDA CHANGES  
Erin Mullen-Travis announced the agenda changes.  



Construction Industry Licensing Board Minutes 
November 3, 2016 
Page 2 
               

CONSENT – AFFIDAVITS OF NON-COMPLIANCE FINES   
All matters listed under this item are considered to be routine and action will be accomplished by one 
motion without separate discussion of each item.  If discussion is desired by a member of the Board, 
that item(s) will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.  Each case has 
been assessed with an additional $10.00 for the cost of recording the lien:    

 
1. Dionis Rodriguez – CIL-16-00501 - $1,010.00    John Drown 
2. Imer Rodriguez – CIL-16-00500 - $1,010.00    John Drown 
3. Cezar Obiedo – CIL-16-00502 - $1,010.00     John Drown 
4. Kenneth Jeffries – CIL-16-00497 - $1,010.00   Terri Barnett 
5. James Alexander – CIL-16-00498 - $1,010.00   Terri Barnett 
6. Stephen Valdivia – CIL-16-00504 - $1,010.00   Tom Atkinson 
7. Mark Harrison, Jr. – CIL-16-00503 - $2,010.00  Tom Atkinson 
8. Richard Hernandez – CIL-16-00520 - $1,010.00  John Drown 
9. Giaovanny Rosales – CIL-16-00521 - $1,010.00  John Drown 
10. Cesar Rosales – CIL-16-00522 - $1,010.00   John Drown 
11. Xavier Henriguez – CIL-16-00523 - $1,010.00  John Drown 
12. Richard Cochrane – CIL-16-00524 - $1,010.00  Tom Atkinson 
 

MOTION:  Carleton Strong motioned to accept the fines as stated in the Affidavits of 
Non-compliance. Pamela Alexander seconded and was passed 
unanimously. 

 
CONTESTING CITATION 
1. James F. Gohl – Citation No. 4175 - $1,000.00  John Drown 
 
James F. Gohl – Contested Citation No. 4175. John Drown Certified Code Compliance Officer, 
Licensing Investigator, provided testimony as stated in the investigative report.  James F. Gohl was 
present and provided testimony to the Board.   

 
MOTION: Carleton Strong motioned to uphold the affidavit of non-compliance for Citation 

No. 4175. The motion was seconded by Pamela Alexander with two (2) 
opposing votes Tom Burns and John Damon.  

 
REINSTATEMENT 
1. Dwight Williams      Lorraine Lundblad 

f/k/a Aloha Air Heating & Cooling 
Certified Air Conditioning Contractor 
License No. CAC1815948 
Case No. CIL-15-00435 

 
Dwight Williams has requested reinstatement of his permitting privileges and the right to work in 
Charlotte County. 
 
The investigative report was read into the record by Lorraine Lundblad Certified Code Compliance 
Officer, Licensing Division. Dwight Williams was present and provided testimony to the Board. 
 

MOTION: Tom Burns made the motion that the permitting privileges and the right to 
work in Charlotte County of Dwight C Williams be temporarily reinstated 



Construction Industry Licensing Board Minutes 
November 3, 2016 
Page 3 
               

and the Respondent must appear before the Board to have his license fully 
reinstated. The motion was seconded by Carleton Strong and was 
approved unanimously. 

 
LICENSE REVIEW 
None 
 
EXAMINATION 
None 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
1. Daniel S Cline       Lorraine Lundblad 

Efficiency Air, LLC   
Certified Air Conditioning Contractor 
License No. CAC057892 
Case No. CIL-15-00346 

 
Lorraine Lundblad Certified Code Compliance Officer, Licensing Investigator, provided testimony. 
Daniel S Cline was present and provided testimony to the board.   

 
MOTION: Pamela Alexander made the motion that Daniel S Cline’s MUST appear 

before the Board on March 2, 2017, to provide an update on all outstanding 
permits. The motion was seconded by Carleton Strong and was passed 
unanimously. 

 
DISCIPLINE CASES 
1. Louis Joseph Bruno, IV     Lorraine Lundblad 

Bruno Air Conditioning of SWFL 
Certified Air Conditioning Contractor 
License No. CAC1817131 

 Case No. CIL-15-00432 
 

The investigative report was read into the record by Lorraine Lundblad Certified Code Compliance 
Officer, Licensing Division. Timothy Culhane, attorney for Louis Joseph Bruno, IV, and Dustin Harris 
were present and provided testimony to the Board. 
 
CHARGE 1:  Florida Building Codes 110.3 and 110.5 Adopted by Charlotte County Code 3-2-23: The 
building official upon notification from the permit holder or his or her agent, shall make the following 
inspections, and shall either release that portion of the construction or shall notify the permit holder or 
his or her agent of any violations which must be corrected in order to comply with the technical codes.  
The building official shall determine the timing and sequencing of when inspections occur and what 
elements are inspected at each inspection.  Additionally, it shall be the duty of the holder of the building 
permit or their duly authorized agent to notify the building official when work is ready for inspection.  The 
duty of the permit holder shall provide access to and means for inspections of such work that are 
required by this code (1 count). 

CHARGE 2:  Charlotte County Code 3-2-47(b)(4) Willful or deliberate disregard and violation of any 
lawful order of the board, any provisions of Charlotte County Code, Chapter 3-2, Chapter 3-9, any 



Construction Industry Licensing Board Minutes 
November 3, 2016 
Page 4 
               

provisions of any code adopted pursuant to this chapter or any state law regulating the construction 
industry, including Chapter 489 and Part I of Chapter 455 (1 count).  

CHARGE 3:  Charlotte County Code 3-2-47(b)(20) - Failing to obtain inspections including but not 
limited to final inspections (1 count).  

MOTION: Tom Burns that Louis Joseph Bruno, IV is found in violation as charged. 
Louis Joseph Bruno’s, IV new permitting privileges be suspended and 
that the permits listed in the Notice of Violation be renewed with thirty (30) 
days in addition to the two (2) new permits. Per the Florida Building Code, 
Louis Joseph Bruno, IV must obtain final inspections of all outstanding 
permits within 6 months or in accordance with the Florida Building Code. If 
Louis Joseph Bruno, IV allows any of the permits in the Notice to expire 
again without the required inspections, his permitting privileges and right to 
work as a contractor in Charlotte County shall be revoked without the need 
for a further administrative hearing and a follow up notice shall be sent to 
the Florida Construction Industry Licensing Board notifying them of the 
failure to comply with the Boards Order. It is further recommended that if 
Louis Joseph Bruno, IV complies with the order in the time frame 
specified and the permits are renewed and issued final inspections, Louis 
Joseph Bruno, IV shall be required to reappear before the Board to have 
his permitting privileges reinstated. It is further recommended that a copy 
of this case along with a copy the Board’s order be forwarded to the 
Department of Business and Professional Regulation (DBPR) and Florida 
Construction Industry Licensing Board (FCLIB) with the recommendation 
that the State Certified Air Conditioning Contractor’s License of Louis 
Joseph Bruno, IV be disciplined up to and including suspension of Louis 
Joseph Bruno’s, IV contractor’s license by the Florida Construction 
Industry Licensing Board.. Kenneth Lowe seconded and was passed 
unanimously. 

 
2. Thomas Lippert - CONTINUED    Lorraine Lundblad 

d/b/a Home Performance Alliance, Inc. 
Certified General Contractor  
License No. CGC1508826 
Case No. CIL-15-00528 
 

3. Joseph Charles Gentry - CONTINUED   Tom Atkinson 
AA Temperature Services Inc. 
Certified Air Conditioning Contractor 
License No. CAC1813211 
Case No. CIL-15-00354 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Construction Industry Licensing Board Minutes 
November 3, 2016 
Page 5 
               

4. Joseph Michael Casey     Lorraine Lundblad 
Florida Air Works Inc. 
Certified Air Conditioning Contractor 
License No. CAC1815599 
Case No. CIL-16-00422 

 
The investigative report was read into the record by Lorraine Lundblad Certified Code Compliance 
Officer, Licensing Division. Joseph Michael Casey was present and provided testimony to the Board. 
 
CHARGE 1:  Florida Building Code Sections 110.3 and 110.5, adopted by Charlotte County Code 
3-2-23:  The building official upon notification from the permit holder or his or her agent shall make 
the following inspections, and shall either release that portion of the construction or shall notify 
the permit holder or his or her agent of any violations which must be corrected in order to comply 
with the technical codes. The building official shall determine the timing and sequencing of when 
inspections occur and what elements are inspected at each inspection. Additionally, it shall be 
the duty of the holder of the building permit or their duly authorized agent to notify the building 
official when work is ready for inspection. It shall be the duty of the permit holder to provide access 
to and means for inspections of such work that are required by this code. (1 count) 
 
CHARGE 2: Charlotte County Code 3-2-47 (b)(4) Willful or deliberate disregard and violation of 
any lawful order of the board, any provisions of Charlotte County Code, Chapter 3-2, Chapter 3-
9, any provisions of any code adopted pursuant to this chapter or any state law regulating the 
construction industry, including Chapter 489 and Part I of Chapter 455. (1 count)  
 
CHARGE 3: Charlotte County Code 3-2-47 (b)(20) Failing to obtain inspection including but not 
limited to final inspection. (1 count) 
 

MOTION: John Damon that Joseph Michael Casey is found in violation as charged. 
That Joseph Michael Casey is found in violation as charged. Joseph 
Michael Casey’s permitting privileges and the right to work as a contractor 
in Charlotte County be revoked. It is further recommended that a copy of 
this case along with a copy the Board’s order be forwarded to the 
Department of Business and Professional Regulation (DBPR) and Florida 
Construction Industry Licensing Board (FCLIB) with the recommendation 
that the State Certified Air Conditioning Contractor’s License of Joseph 
Michael Casey be disciplined up to and including suspension of Joseph 
Michael Casey’s Contractors license by the Florida Construction Industry 
Licensing Board.  Kenneth Lowe seconded and was passed unanimously. 

 
5. John Kenneth Teague -CONTINUED   Terri Barnett 

Annointed Air & Refrigeration Inc.   
Certified Air Conditioning Contractor 
License No. CAC1815111 
Case No. CIL-15-00396 
 
 
 

6. Gregory L Wallace      Lorraine Lundblad 
Precision Building & Mechanical, LLC  



Construction Industry Licensing Board Minutes 
November 3, 2016 
Page 6 
               

f/k/a Advance Solar Construction, LLC  
Certified Air Conditioning Contractor 
License No. CAC054715 
Case No. CIL-16-00487 
 

The investigative report was read into the record by Lorraine Lundblad Certified Code Compliance 
Officer, Licensing Division. Gregory L Wallace was present and provided testimony to the Board. 
 
CHARGE 1:  Florida Building Code Sections 110.3 and 110.5, adopted by Charlotte County Code 
3-2-23:  The building official upon notification from the permit holder or his or her agent shall make 
the following inspections, and shall either release that portion of the construction or shall notify 
the permit holder or his or her agent of any violations which must be corrected in order to comply 
with the technical codes. The building official shall determine the timing and sequencing of when 
inspections occur and what elements are inspected at each inspection. Additionally, it shall be 
the duty of the holder of the building permit or their duly authorized agent to notify the building 
official when work is ready for inspection. It shall be the duty of the permit holder to provide access 
to and means for inspections of such work that are required by this code. (3 counts) 
 
CHARGE 2: Charlotte County Code 3-2-47 (b)(4) Willful or deliberate disregard and violation of 
any lawful order of the board, any provisions of Charlotte County Code, Chapter 3-2, Chapter 3-
9, any provisions of any code adopted pursuant to this chapter or any state law regulating the 
construction industry, including Chapter 489 and Part I of Chapter 455. (3 counts)  
 
CHARGE 3: Charlotte County Code 3-2-47 (b)(20) - Failing to obtain inspection including but not 
limited to final inspection. (3 counts) 
 

MOTION: John Damon that Gregory L Wallace is found in violation as charged. 
Gregory L Wallace’s new permitting privileges be suspended and that the 
permits listed in the Notice of Violation be renewed with thirty (30) days. 
Per the Florida Building Code, Gregory L Wallace must obtain final 
inspections of all outstanding permits within 6 months or in accordance with 
the Florida Building Code. If Gregory L Wallace allows any of the permits 
in the Notice to expire again without the required inspections, his permitting 
privileges and right to work as a contractor in Charlotte County shall be 
revoked without the need for a further administrative hearing and a follow 
up notice shall be sent to the Florida Construction Industry Licensing Board 
notifying them of the failure to comply with the Boards Order. It is further 
recommended that if Gregory L Wallace complies with the order in the 
time frame specified and the permits are renewed and issued final 
inspections, Gregory L Wallace shall not be required to reappear before 
the Board to have his permitting privileges reinstated. It is further 
recommended that a copy of this case along with a copy the Board’s order 
be forwarded to the Department of Business and Professional Regulation 
(DBPR) and Florida Construction Industry Licensing Board (FCLIB) with 
the recommendation that the State Certified Air Conditioning Contractor’s 
License of Gregory L Wallace be disciplined up to and including 
suspension of Gregory L Wallace’s Contractors license by the Florida 
Construction Industry Licensing Board.. Carleton Strong seconded and 
was passed unanimously. 



Construction Industry Licensing Board Minutes 
November 3, 2016 
Page 7 
               

 
CITIZEN INPUT 
None  
 
REPORT FROM THE LICENSING DIVISION MANAGER 
Erin Mullen-Travis gave an update on the number of citations that have been issued so far in 2016. 
Also address was citing the homeowners and the license investigators are working very close with 
works comp. 
 
REPORT FROM THE BUILDING OFFICIAL 
None 
 
REPORT FROM THE ASSISTANT COUNTY ATTORNEY 
None 
 
BOARD ATTORNEY COMMENTS 
None 
 
REPORT FROM CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY LICENSING BOARD MEMBERS 
A discussion took place about place a quad fees placed on the property when work is being performed 
without a permit.  
 
ADJOURNMENT  
Tom Burns made the motion to adjourn and John Damon seconded the motion and it was approved 
unanimously at 7:35 pm.  
 
  



Construction Industry Licensing Board Minutes 
November 3, 2016 
Page 8 
               

 
 
 

CHARLOTTE COUNTY 
CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY LICENSING BOARD 

MINUTES OF November 3, 2016 
 

 
 

Read and approved on December 1, 2016: 
 
 
       _________________________________ 

Charles Hackbarth, Chairman,  
Charlotte County Construction 
Industry Licensing Board 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Sandra Williamson 
Administrative Assistant I 
Community Development Department 
Contractor Licensing Division 
 

 
 
 
 

Complete files of all cases, as well as taped recordings of all proceedings of this meeting, are 
kept in the Community Development Department and are available to the public.   
 
 
 
Any person who decides to appeal a decision of this Board will need a record of the proceedings 
pertaining thereto, and therefore may need to insure that a verbatim record of the proceedings 
is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be 
based.  
 


















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































	Agenda-Minutes
	Burt, Ronald
	Carpenter, Paul
	Casey, Joseph M
	Gonzalez, Rafael
	Guerrero, Camilo
	Hernandez, Armando
	Moose, Jackie
	Perez, Carlos
	Rincon, Luis
	Rodriguez, Armando
	Teague, John

